

Planning Proposal to amend Penrith Local Environmental Plan 2010

57 Henry Street, Penrith

June 2018

Contents

Introduction	5
Purpose of Planning Proposal	5
Part 1 – Objectives or Intended Outcomes	6
Part 2 – Explanation of Provisions	7
Part 3 – Justification	9
Section A – Need for the Planning Proposal	9
Section B – Relationship to Strategic Planning Framework	9
Section C – Environmental, Social and Economic Impacts	23
Section D – State and Commonwealth Interests	25
Part 4 – Mapping	26
Part 5 – Community Consultation	27
Part 6 - Project Timeline	28
Appendices	29

Appendices

- Draft Penrith LEP 2010 maps Traffic and Parking Assessment 2
- Urban Design Report
- Preliminary Site Investigation Contamination 4
- 5 Economic Impact Assessment
- 6 Heritage Impact Statement
- 7 Flooding and Overland Flow Report
- 8 Council Reports and Minutes

Introduction

Purpose of Planning Proposal

The purpose of the Planning Proposal is to amend the planning controls for land at 57 Henry Street, Penrith. An amendment to *Penrith Local Environmental Plan 2010* (LEP 2010) is required to amend the relevant controls.

The Department of Planning and Environment's (DP&E) Gateway Process is the current process for making or amending Local Environmental Plans (LEPs). The process has a number of steps which are outlined in Table 1. The preparation of a Planning Proposal is the first step in DP&E's Gateway Process for amending LEP 2010.

Table 1: Gateway Process

No.	Step	Explanation
1	Planning Proposal	Council prepares a Planning Proposal explaining the intended effect of a proposed LEP and sets out the justification for making the LEP.
	_	
2	Gateway Determination	The Department of Planning and Environment, as a delegate of the Minister for Planning, determines whether a Planning Proposal should proceed.
3	Community Consultation	The Planning Proposal is placed on public exhibition for the period identified in the Gateway Determination.
4	Assessment	Council considers the submissions received in response to the public exhibition, and varies the planning proposal if required.
5	Drafting	Parliamentary Counsel prepares a draft local environmental plan.
6	Decision	The relevant planning authority approves the local environmental plan, making it law.

Part 1 – Objectives or Intended Outcomes

The objective of this Planning Proposal is facilitate, in the short term, the redevelopment of land at 57 Henry Street, Penrith for residential and employment purposes, whilst delivering additional community infrastructure within Penrith City Centre.

Specifically, the objectives for this Planning Proposal are to:

- Respond to current market conditions and feasibility challenges by providing the opportunity to redevelop, activate and revitalise the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre
- Promote development at a density and height that is consistent with the site's role as a Gateway and the development of those adjacent that promote tower forms along a height spine
- Ensure timely redevelopment of the site along with other Key Sites in the City Centre as envisaged by Council's Incentives Clause (clause 8.7 of Penrith LEP 2010)
- Allow for flexibility in the application of built form controls and address impacts upon the heritage building on site at the same time allowing for the adaptive reuse of this heritage item
- Allow the introduction of residential accommodation on the site to respond to market demand at the same time as ensuring adequate commercial land area remains available in the Commercial Core
- Maintain a proportion of commercial/retail development floor area on the land to provide for an increase in employment-related floor area
- Provide for additional Community Infrastructure from any density uplift for the benefit of the broader community

Part 2 – Explanation of Provisions

The following amendments are proposed to the Penrith LEP 2010:

1. Amend the Key Sites map to identify 57 Henry Street, Penrith as Key Site 12

Amend the Key Sites map as shown below:



2. Amend clause 8.7 (4) as follows:

The consent authority must not consent to the erection of a building on land to which this clause applies if the floor space ratio for the building exceeds the following floor space ratio:

- (a) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 4" on the Key Sites Map—5:1,
- (b) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 6" on the Key Sites Map—2.5:1,
- (c) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 7" on the Key Sites Map—5:1,
- (d) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 8" on the Key Sites Map—5.5:1,
- (e) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 11" on the Key Sites Map—5:1,
- (f) in relation to development on any land identified as "Key Site 12" on the Key Sites Map—6.5:1.

3. Amend Schedule 1 - Additional Permitted Uses to insert the following clause:

35 Use of certain land at 57 Henry Street, Penrith

- (1) This clause applies to land at 57 Henry Street, Penrith, being the land identified as "34" on the Additional Permitted Uses Map
- (2) Development for the purposes of a residential flat building and shop top housing is permitted with development consent, if the development includes a minimum floor space ratio of 0.75:1 for non-residential uses

- (3) This clause ceases to apply on and after three years from the date of gazettal of Amendment No. (TBC) to the Penrith Local Environmental Plan 2010
- 4. Amend the Additional Permitted Uses map to identify 57 Henry Street, Penrith as containing Additional Permitted Uses.

Amend the Additional Permitted Uses map as show below:



Part 3 – Justification

This part of the Planning Proposal presents the need for the proposed amendments to Penrith LEP 2010, the relationship with the strategic planning framework, the impacts of the proposed changes, and State and Commonwealth interests.

Section A – Need for the Planning Proposal

1. Is the Planning Proposal a result of any strategic study or report?

The proposal is not directly the result of a strategy or study.

The identification of the subject land as a Key Site is considered appropriate given that it aligns with the height spine along the railway line under the existing incentives clause provisions and other Key Sites, and essentially 'fills the gap' between the two existing Key Sites on either side of the site. It is assumed the site was not originally identified as a Key Site due to the site being owned by the NSW Government prior to the current ownership when this analysis was undertaken.

The Planning Proposal is supported by the following technical studies/reports:

- Heritage Impact Statement
- Economic Impact Assessment
- Urban Design Report
- Traffic Assessment Report
- Additional Information/responses to a request for further information
- 2. Is the Planning Proposal the best means of achieving the objectives or intended outcomes, or is there a better way?

A Planning Proposal to amend the Penrith LEP 2010 is the only way to achieve the objectives and intended outcomes.

Section B – Relationship to Strategic Planning Framework

3. Is the Planning Proposal consistent with the objectives and actions of the applicable regional, sub-regional or district plan or strategy (including any exhibited draft plans or strategies?)

Greater Sydney Region Plan

The Greater Sydney Region Plan (GSRP) includes a series of ten directions with objectives linked to each direction. An assessment of the Planning Proposal has been provided against the relevant directions and objectives in the table below:

Table 2 – Assessment of the Planning Proposal against the Greater Sydney Region Plan

Directions	Consistency
Housing the City	
Objective 10: Greater Housing Supply	Consistent.
G 11.7	The GSRP identifies housing targets for the Western City including a housing supply target of 39,850 dwellings for the period between 2016 to 2021. As the Planning Proposal has

	the potential to facilitate approximately 550 dwellings and
	contribute to achieving the housing targets for the Western
	City.
	The GSRP outlines that housing is preferred in locations well supported by existing or planned services and amenity with an emphasis on public transport access. The Planning Proposal is located within the Penrith City Centre which is identified as part of the Metropolitan City Cluster. Penrith City Centre has access to a range of public transport options, jobs and services. The proposed development contributes to the provision of more transit-oriented development within the Western City.
Objective 11: Housing is more diverse and	Consistent.
affordable	The GSRP outlines the importance of providing diversity of housing types, sizes and price points to help improve affordability. The Planning Proposal has the ability to facilitate approximately 550 dwellings of different sizes and numbers of bedrooms within the Penrith City Centre which will contribute to the provision of greater housing diversity within the Penrith Local Government Area.
	As the Planning Proposal is not seeking to rezone the land, the Affordable Rental Housing Target is not applicable.
A city of great places	
Objective 12: Great places	Consistent.
Objective 12: Great places that bring people together	Consistent. The GSRP refers to place making principles and outcomes that enhance opportunities for more walkable, fine-grain neighbourhoods with public benefits. The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a site to provide better through-site links and improve amenity at the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre.
	The GSRP refers to place making principles and outcomes that enhance opportunities for more walkable, fine-grain neighbourhoods with public benefits. The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a site to provide better through-site links and improve amenity at the eastern end of
that bring people together Objective 13:	The GSRP refers to place making principles and outcomes that enhance opportunities for more walkable, fine-grain neighbourhoods with public benefits. The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a site to provide better through-site links and improve amenity at the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre. As the Planning Proposal seeks to utilise Council's incentives clause, additional Community Infrastructure must be
that bring people together	The GSRP refers to place making principles and outcomes that enhance opportunities for more walkable, fine-grain neighbourhoods with public benefits. The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a site to provide better through-site links and improve amenity at the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre. As the Planning Proposal seeks to utilise Council's incentives clause, additional Community Infrastructure must be provided should these incentives be taken up.

A	
A well connected city	Consistent
Objective 14: A Metropolis	Consistent.
of three cities – integrated	A least maintainte of the CODD in the literation and the satisfact for a
land use and transport	A key principle of the GSRP is delivering on the vision for a
creates walkable and 30-	30-minute city where the community has access to jobs,
minute cities	homes and services within 30-minutes access to a
	metropolitan centre or cluster.
	The Planning Proposal has the potential to facilitate a
	minimum of 5,500 sqm of employment floor area and
	approximately 550 dwellings, within the Penrith City Centre
	which is part of the Metropolitan City Cluster. This will
	provide additional opportunities for residents to live close to
	jobs and other services.
Jobs and skills for the city	
Objective 22: Investment	Consistent.
and business activity in	
centres	The GSRP outlines that higher concentration of jobs and
	services should be provided within Metropolitan centres.
	Penrith City Centre is part of the Metropolitan City Cluster,
	which is considered a Metropolitan centre.
	It is important that in facilitating residential development on
	the subject site, that the provision of some employment-
	related floor area is provided in order to ensure that the
	Penrith City Centre commercial core is maintained and more
	strongly defined at its edge to transition to the adjacent
	mixed use zone. In response to this issue, it is proposed that
	a new provision be inserted into the Penrith LEP 2010 that
	requires a minimum floor area of non-residential floor space
	ratio where residential development is permitted. The
	proposal to include a minimum floor area of 0.75:1 for non-
	residential floor space will contribute a minimum of 5,500
	sqm of higher quality employment floor area to the Penrith
	City Centre.

Western City District Plan

The Western City District Plan (WCDP) identifies priorities and actions to realise the vision for the Western City District in line with the vision of the Greater Sydney Region Plan. The WCDP includes a number of Planning Priorities and an assessment of the Planning Proposal has been provided against the relevant directions below:

Table 3 – Assessment of the Planning Proposal against the Western City District Plan

Directions	Consistency
Housing the city	
Planning Priority W5:	Consistent.
Providing housing supply,	
choice and affordability	The WCDP identifies a housing target for Penrith Local
with access to jobs,	Government Area of 6,600 dwellings between the period of
	2016-2021. The WCDP also identifies that opportunities for

services and public the provision of housing should be in urban renewal areas including areas with accessibility to jobs and regional transport transport. The Planning Proposal can facilitate approximately 550 dwellings within the Penrith City Centre which has access to jobs, good public transport links and services. A city of great places Planning Priority W6: The WCDP outlines a preference for place-based planning Creating and renewing with high quality, community-specific and place-based great places and local outcomes. centres, and respecting the District's heritage The Planning Proposal will facilitate the renewal of the site which is currently vacant and improve the amenity, connectivity and accessibility of the site for residents and the public. By facilitating an increase in people living within the Penrith City Centre, this will help activate the city at night and improve the night-time economy. Jobs and skills for the city Planning Priority W9: Consistent. Growing and strengthening the The WCDP outlines a series of actions for each of the cities metropolitan cluster that form the Metropolitan City Cluster including Greater Penrith (which includes the Penrith City Centre). Relevant actions for Greater Penrith that apply to this Planning Proposal includes: Support the transformation of the City Centre to grow to its ultimate potential Facilitate the attraction of a range of uses that contribute to an active and vibrant City Centre Activate primary and secondary streets and deliver contemporary urban public spaces Promote urban living by improving amenity within the City Centre and activating public spaces Support and demonstrate innovation The Planning Proposal responds to these actions by: Responding to current market conditions and feasibility challenges by providing the opportunity to redevelop, activate and revitalise the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre

- Allowing the introduction of residential accommodation on the site to respond to market demand at the same time as ensuring adequate commercial land area remains available in the Commercial Core
- Demonstrating innovation by capturing additional Community Infrastructure from any density uplift through categorisation of the site as a Key Site

4. Is the Planning Proposal consistent with Council's local strategy or other local strategic plan?

Penrith Community Plan

The Penrith Community Plan was adopted by Council on 26 June 2017 and represents the community's vision for the Penrith Local Government Area over the next 20 years.

The Plan outlines the priorities for the community and includes the following outcomes:

- 1. We can work close to home
- 2. We plan for our future growth
- 3. We can get around our city
- 4. We have safe, vibrant places
- 5. We care for our environment
- 6. We are healthy, and share strong community spirit
- 7. We have confidence in our Council

Table 4 – Assessment of Planning Proposal against the relevant local strategic plan

Outcomes	Consistency
Outcome 1: We can work close to home	
Strategy 1.1: Attract investment to grow the	Consistent.
economy and increase the range of businesses operating in the region	The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a key gateway site within the Penrith City Centre delivering high quality floor area for employment-related uses. The availability of new employment floor area can act as a catalyst for new businesses to invest within the Penrith City Centre, growing the number of local jobs.
Outcome 2: We plan for futu	ire growth
Strategy 2.1: Facilitate development in the City	Consistent.
that considers the current and future needs of our community	The Planning Proposal will facilitate the redevelopment of a site currently vacant within the Penrith City Centre.
	The Planning Proposal can also facilitate the provision of approximately 550 dwellings, providing greater diversity of housing stock and new housing and lifestyle options for the community.

5. Is the Planning Proposal consistent with applicable State Environmental Planning Policies?

State Environmental Planning Policies

The NSW Government publishes State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPPs) and Sydney Regional Environmental Plans (SREPs or deemed SEPPs). These documents deal with matters of State or regional planning significance. The Planning Proposal is consistent with applicable State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPPs), as demonstrated below.

Table 5 – Assessment of the Planning Proposal against relevant State Environmental Planning Policies

SEPP	Applicable	Consistent
SEPP No 1— Development standards	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 19— Bushland in Urban Areas	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 21— Caravan Parks	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 30— Intensive Agriculture	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 33— Hazardous and Offensive Development	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 36— Manufactured Home Estates	No	N/A
SEPP No 44—Koala Habitat Protection	No	N/A
SEPP No 47— Moore Park Showground	No	N/A
SEPP No 50—Canal Estate Development	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 52—Farm Dams and Other Works in Land and Water Management Plan Areas	No	N/A
SEPP No 55— Remediation of Land	Yes	Consistent. A preliminary site investigation was undertaken and concludes that contaminants are unlikely to be presents at the site at concentrations which would cause the site to be unsuitable for the proposed development. There is no evidence which suggests the site has been used for anything other than a school and other education-related buildings and activities since 1865.
SEPP No 62— Sustainable Aquaculture	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.

SEPP	Applicable	Consistent
SEPP No 64— Advertising and Signage	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP No 65— Design Quality of Residential Flat Development	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP. The proposed development will need to demonstrate consistency with this SEPP when a Development Application is lodged.
SEPP No 70— Affordable Housing (Revised Schemes)	No	N/A
SEPP No 71— Coastal Protection	No	N/A
SEPP (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Coastal Management) 2018	No	N/A
SEPP (Educational Establishments and Child Care Facilities) 2017	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (Integration and Repeals) 2016	No	N/A
SEPP (Kosciuszko National Park— Alpine Resorts) 2007	No	N/A
SEPP (Kurnell Peninsula) 1989	No	N/A

SEPP	Applicable	Consistent
SEPP (Mining, Petroleum Production and Extractive Industries) 2007	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
State Environmental Planning Policy (Miscellaneous Consent Provisions) 2007	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
State Environmental Planning Policy (Penrith Lakes Scheme) 1989	No	N/A
SEPP (Rural Lands) 2008	No	N/A
SEPP (State and Regional Development) 2011	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP.
SEPP (State Significant Precincts) 2005	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP. The subject site is not identified as a State Significant Precinct.
SEPP (Sydney Drinking Water Catchment) 2011	No	N/A
SEPP (Sydney Region Growth Centres) 2006	No	N/A
SEPP (Three Ports) 2013	No	N/A
SEPP (Urban Renewal) 2010	No	N/A
SEPP (Vegetation in Non-Rural Areas) 2017	Yes	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does not affect application of the SEPP. The proposed development will need to demonstrate consistency with this SEPP when a Development Application is lodged.
SEPP (Western Sydney Employment Area) 2009	No	N/A

SEPP	Applicable	Consistent
SEPP (Western Sydney Parklands) 2009	No	N/A

6. Is the Planning Proposal consistent with applicable Ministerial Directions (s9.1 directions)?

Section 9.1 Local Planning Directions

The Minister for Planning and Environment issues Local Planning Directions that Councils must follow when preparing a Planning Proposal. The Directions cover the following broad categories:

- o employment and resources;
- o environment and heritage;
- o housing, infrastructure, and urban development; and
- o hazard and risk.

An assessment of the Planning Proposal against the Local Planning Directions is provided below.

Table 6 – Assessment of the Planning Proposal against Local Planning Directions

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment		
Employment and Resources			
1.1 Business and Industrial Zones This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will affect land within an existing or proposed business or industrial zone (including the alteration of any existing business or industrial zone boundary).	The Planning Proposal seeks to facilitate the permissibility of residential development on the subject land as an Additional Permitted Use, which will not result in a reduction of land zoned B3 Commercial Core within the Penrith City Centre. This approach is preferred over rezoning the land to B4 Mixed Use, as Council is looking to provide an incentive in the short term to develop the land to activate the City Centre and in particular the eastern end of the City Centre and on a site which is currently vacant. The Planning Proposal is a response to current feasibility analysis that identifies that commercial development is not currently feasible within the Penrith City Centre, under the current market conditions. It has been identified that a 'catalyst' development could shift this situation. With this in mind, it is considered that by permitting residential development on the subject site, the site's redevelopment would deliver some much needed and desirable high-quality commercial/retail floor space, with a mandated minimum non-residential FSR for the site. This approach is considered an innovative response to challenging market conditions but is also supported for this site specifically for the following reasons: O The site is located approximately 800m away from the train station and on the edge of the B3 Commercial Core zone		

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment	
	The proposal has the potential to	
	activate the eastern part of Penrith	
	City Centre	
	 The redevelopment of the site will 	
	bring better urban design	
	outcomes than what is currently on	
	the site, as the site has been	
	vandalised and currently vacant o The sites' location, under single	
	o The sites' location, under single ownership and large site area, can	
	facilitate taller buildings and	
	greater densities	
	 The proponents are seeking to 	
	utilise the incentives clause,	
	therefore a significant Community	
	Infrastructure offer will be	
	provided. Only Key Sites can	
	access this provision.	
	It is generally not recommended to support	
	residential uses elsewhere within the B3	
	Commercial Core zone as this would discourage	
	the consolidation of the Commercial Core zone.	
	It is considered that this approach is a flevible	
	It is considered that this approach is a flexible	
	and innovative response to 'incentivise' the delivery of the proposed development in the short	
	term and therefore the permissibility of residential	
	development should be facilitated but restricted	
	on its permissibility to within a specified	
	timeframe. For this reason it is proposed that the	
	permissibility of residential be permitted but only	
	for a period of up to three years from the date of the LEP amendments gazettal. This will act as an	
	incentive in the short term and a minimum	
	quantity of floor area for employment-related	
	uses. If a development which includes a	
	residential component is not progressed within	
	the three year period, the market conditions and	
	feasibility may be more favourable to facilitate the	
	deliverability of a commercial building therefore it	
	is important to preserve this site for future commercial uses should the proposal not be	
	developed in the short term.	
	·	
	The Planning Proposal justifies the proposed	
	introduction of residential land uses for the	
	subject land as being necessary to facilitate the provision of any floor area for employment uses	
	on the site, therefore it is considered that the	
	inconsistency with this Direction is of minor	
	significance.	
1.2 Rural Zones	N/A	

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that will affect land within an	
existing or proposed rural zone (including	
the alteration of any existing rural zone	
boundary).	
1.3 Mining, Petroleum Production and	N/A
Extractive Industries	
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that would have the effect of:	
(a) prohibiting the mining of coal or other	
minerals, production of petroleum, or	
winning or obtaining of extractive	
materials, or	
(b) restricting the potential development	
of resources of coal, other minerals,	
petroleum or extractive materials which	
are of State or regional significance by	
permitting a land use that is likely to be	
incompatible with such development.	
1.4 Oyster Aquaculture	N/A
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares any planning	
proposal that proposes a change in land	
use which could result in:	
(a) adverse impacts on a Priority Oyster	
Aquaculture Area or a "current oyster	
aquaculture lease in the national parks	
estate"; or	
(b) incompatible use of land between	
oyster aquaculture in a Priority Oyster	
Aquaculture Area or a "current oyster	
aquaculture lease in the national parks	
estate" and other land uses.	N1/A
1.5 Rural Lands	N/A
This direction applies when:	
(a) a relevant planning authority prepares	
a planning proposal that will affect land	
within an existing or proposed rural or	
environment protection zone (including	
the alteration of any existing rural or	
environment protection zone boundary)	
Or	
(b) a relevant planning authority prepares	
a planning proposal that changes the	
existing minimum lot size on land within	
a rural or environment protection zone. 2. Enviror	amont and Haritage
This direction applies when a relevant	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this Direction as the proposal will not alter existing
planning authority prepares a planning	provisions relating to environmentally sensitive
proposal.	lands or environmental protection zones.
ριοροσαί.	ianas of environmental protection zones.

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment
2.2 Coastal Protection	N/A
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that applies to land in the	
coastal zone.	
2.3 Heritage Conservation	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
This direction applies when a relevant	Direction as the Planning Proposal does not seek
planning authority prepares a planning	to amend any existing provisions relating to the
proposal.	heritage status of the subject site or heritage
The objective of this direction is to	item.
conserve items, areas, objects and	
places of environmental heritage	
significance and indigenous heritage	
significance.	
2.4 Recreation Vehicle Areas	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
This direction applies when a relevant	Direction as it does not include any provisions
planning authority prepares a planning	relating to a recreation vehicle area.
proposal.	
2.5 Application of E2 and E3 Zones	N/A
and Environmental Overlays in Far	
North Coast LEPs	
This direction applies to the local	
government areas of Ballina, Byron,	
Kyogle, Lismore and Tweed.	
	cture and Urban Development
3.1 Residential Zones	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
This direction applies when a relevant	Direction as the Planning Proposal will facilitate
planning authority prepares a planning	the development of approximately 550 dwellings
proposal that will affect land within:	within the Penrith City Centre with good access to
(a) an existing or proposed residential	public transport, services and other amenity.
zone (including the alteration of any existing residential zone boundary),	As the Benrith City Centre is well conviced by
(b) any other zone in which significant	As the Penrith City Centre is well serviced by utilities and infrastructure, the Planning Proposal
residential development is permitted or	is not anticipated to require any specific
proposed to be permitted.	provisions or requirements relating to the
proposed to be permitted.	servicing of the land.
	or thomag or the land.
3.2 Caravan Parks and Manufactured	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
Home Estates	Direction as the Planning Proposal does not
This direction applies when a relevant	affect any provisions for caravan parks or
planning authority prepares a planning	manufactured home estates.
proposal.	
3.3 Home Occupations	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
This direction applies when a relevant	Direction as the Planning Proposal does not
planning authority prepares a planning	affect any existing provisions regarding the
proposal.	permissibility of home occupations.
3.4 Integrating Land Use and	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
Transport This direction applies when a relevant	Direction as the Planning Proposal seeks to
This direction applies when a relevant	encourage development in the City Centre,
planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will create, alter or remove	providing for jobs, services, better amenity and
proposai mai wiii create, alter or remove	

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment
a zone or a provision relating to urban	housing within Penrith City Centre, which is well
land, including land zoned for residential,	accessible by public transport.
business, industrial, village or tourist	decederate by public transport.
purposes.	
3.5 Development Near Licensed	N/A
Aerodromes	19/7
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that will create, alter or remove	
a zone or a provision relating to land in	
the vicinity of a licensed aerodrome.	
3.6 Shooting Ranges	N/A
This direction applies when a relevant	1477
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that will affect, create, alter or	
remove a zone or a provision relating to	
land adjacent to and/ or adjoining an	
existing shooting range.	
	zard and Risk
4.1 Acid Sulfate Soils	N/A. The Planning Proposal does not include land
This direction applies when a relevant	that is identified as having a probability of
planning authority prepares a planning	containing acid sulfate soils.
proposal that will apply to land having a	3 3
probability of containing acid sulfate soils	
as shown on the Acid Sulfate Soils	
Planning Maps.	
4.2 Mine Subsidence and Unstable	N/A
Land	
This direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that permits development on	
land that:	
(a) is within a mine subsidence district, or	
(b) has been identified as unstable in a	
study, strategy or other assessment	
undertaken:	
(i) by or on behalf of the relevant	
planning authority, or	
(ii) by or on behalf of a public authority	
and provided to the relevant planning	
authority.	
4.3 Flood Prone Land	The Penrith City Centre is broadly affected by
This direction applies when a relevant	overland flooding including the subject site. It is
planning authority prepares a planning	considered that the flooding issues can be
proposal that creates, removes or alters	adequately addressed during development
a zone or a provision that affects flood	assessment stage as demonstrated within the
prone land.	Flooding and Overland Flow Report (Appendix 7).
	For these reasons, the Planning Proposal is
A A Diamain or four Developing Description	consistent with this direction.
4.4 Planning for Bushfire Protection	N/A. The Planning Proposal does not include land
This direction applies when a relevant	that is identified as Bush Fire Prone.
planning authority prepares a planning	

Section 9.1 Direction	Comment
proposal that will affect, or is in proximity	
to land mapped as bushfire prone land.	
5. Reg	gional Planning
5.2 Sydney Drinking Water	N/A
Catchments	
This Direction applies when a relevant	
planning authority prepares a planning	
proposal that applies to land within the	
Sydney drinking water catchment.	
5.3 Farmland of State and Regional	N/A
Significance on the NSW Far North	
Coast	
5.4 Commercial and Retail	N/A
Development along the Pacific	TWA
Highway, North Coast	
Ingiliay, North Couct	
5.8 Second Sydney Airport: Badgerys	N/A
Creek	
Planning proposals must not contain	
provisions that enable the carrying out of	
development, either with or without	
development consent, which at the date	
of this direction, could hinder the	
potential for development of a Second	
Sydney Airport.	
5.9 North West Rail Link Corridor	N/A
Strategy	
E 40 Implementation of Posicial Plans	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this
5.10 Implementation of Regional Plans This direction applies when a relevant	The Planning Proposal is consistent with this Direction and the Greater Sydney Region Plan as
planning authority prepares a planning	demonstrated in section B3 of this report.
proposal.	demonstrated in section by or this report.
ριυρυδαί.	

Section C – Environmental, Social and Economic Impacts

7. Is there any likelihood that critical habitat or threatened species, populations or ecological communities, or their habitats, will be adversely affected as a result of the proposal?

The Planning Proposal affects land within a highly urbanised City Centre location and it is not expected that there are any critical habitats or threatened species that will be affected by the Planning Proposal.

8. Are there any other likely environmental effects as a result of the Planning Proposal and how are they proposed to be managed?

Proposed height and FSR

In line with the LEP incentives clause provisions under clause 8.7 of the Penrith LEP 2010, the proposal seeks a bonus FSR of 6.5:1. Consistent with the application of clause 8.7, FSR is proposed to be the principal development standard governed by this clause, with no

maximum building height applicable. This approach promotes a flexible and innovative urban design response and encourages the demonstration of design excellence on the Key Sites.

This Planning Proposal provides for a slightly higher bonus FSR than other Key Sites on either side of the subject land as the site is considered a 'gateway' location at the eastern portion of the City Centre and provides an opportunity for a landmark development along a key intersection.

Consistent with the other Key Sites, if no community infrastructure offer is provided, the existing height and FSR controls remain.

Heritage

The subject land has a heritage item listing being the Penrith Infants Department. The significance of the heritage item relates to the school being representative of a model suburban school building of its era and demonstrates the consolidation of public education within the Local Government Area following the Public Instruction Act of 1880.

The Planning Proposal was referred to Council's Heritage Advisor and Urban Design Review Panel with concerns raised regarding the limited curtilage around the heritage item and impact of the podium levels. In response to the issues raised, the revised Urban Design Analysis Report (prepared by Dickson Rothschild in Appendix 3) and the Heritage Impact Statement (prepared by Weir Phillips Heritage in Appendix 6) identifies that these issues can be mitigated for by lowering the podium height and by substantially enlarging and enhancing the curtilage of the heritage item.

Council will require a Conservation Management Plan to be submitted with a future Development Application, outlining the proposed uses and management of the heritage item and integration with the overall development of the site.

Traffic and access

A Traffic and Parking Assessment has been prepared (Appendix 2) which outlines the anticipated traffic generation of the proposal together with an analysis of parking and access for the development.

Modelling has not been undertaken for the traffic generation of the proposed development in the context of the existing road network, and the existing network capacity and operation of the Evan Street/Henry Street signalled intersection. It is proposed that traffic modelling for the development will be undertaken at Development Application stage, when Council's own traffic study will be available to provide a more accurate reflection of the traffic activity in Penrith City Centre at the completion of the development. As Council's traffic study is expected to be finalised by the end of 2018, these timeframes are likely to align.

Council will be guided by the NSW Department of Planning and Environment and Roads and Maritime Services as part of the Gateway process to determine whether further traffic modelling should be carried out prior to the finalisation of the Planning Proposal, or deferred to when a Development Application is submitted and Council's traffic modelling is finalised.

Flooding

The subject land is identified as being affected by local overland flooding. A Flooding and Overland Flow Report generally addresses Council's requirements in addressing overland flow (Appendix 7).

There are a number of matters that the proponents will be required to address as part of any future development application with regard to local overland flooding.

9. Has the Planning Proposal adequately addressed any social and economic effects?

As demonstrated in this Planning Proposal, there is considerable public benefit in creating urban renewal opportunities within the Penrith City Centre. The vision for the site is to create a vibrant mixed use area that contributes to the overall liveability and productivity of Penrith City Centre. The introduction of a more diverse range of land uses, including residential accommodation, will support the City's existing functions.

An Economic Impact Assessment supporting the Planning Proposal has been undertaken by Hill PDA (Appendix 5).

The introduction of a greater mix of uses together with the adaptive reuse of the existing heritage building on site will promote the active use and vibrancy of the site and at the eastern end of the City Centre. The activation of the site will also create alternative housing options in close proximity to existing services, jobs and transport, as well as provide for employment-related floor area to generate more local jobs.

The provision of residential land uses at this eastern end of the City Centre is intended to provide social and economic benefits through the delivery of housing in a location close to public transport, community facilities and jobs. Further, the introduction of a residential population will assist in activating the eastern end of the Penrith City Centre, including contributing to a more vibrant night-time economy, contributing to the economic growth of existing commercial premises within the City Centre.

It is considered that the Planning Proposal will have positive social and economic benefits for the Penrith City Centre, in that it will establish a planning framework for the revitalisation of a key gateway site.

Section D – State and Commonwealth Interests

10. Is there adequate public infrastructure for the Planning Proposal?

The Penrith City Centre is well serviced by utility infrastructure and is supported by a range of public transport options including rail and regular bus services.

11. What are the views of state and Commonwealth public authorities consulted in accordance with the Gateway determination?

This Planning Proposal requests a Gateway determination in order to proceed to consultation with public authorities. Consultation will be carried out with the relevant public authorities consistent with any approved Gateway determination.

Part 4 – Mapping

The following map tiles are proposed to be amended as part of the Planning Proposal.

Table 7 - Mapping amendments

Мар	Tile Number	
Additional Permitted Uses	APU_013	
Key Sites	KYS_013	

The proposed LEP 2010 map tiles are provided at Appendix 1.

Part 5 – Community Consultation

The Gateway Determination will outline the community consultation to be undertaken.

The planning proposal will be publicly exhibited at the Penrith Council Civic Centre, Penrith Library, Council's St Marys Office and St Marys Library. All exhibition material will be available on Council's website.

Notice of the public exhibition will be given in the local newspaper and on Council's website. Notice of the public exhibition will also be provided by a letter to the land owners and occupiers of adjoining and affected properties.

Part 6 - Project Timeline

Table 8 - Project Timeline

Milestone	Timeframe
Anticipated commencement date (date of Gateway determination)	June 2018
Anticipated timeframe for the completion of required technical information	August 2018
Timeframe for government agency consultation (pre and post exhibition as required by Gateway determination)	August – October 2018 2018
Commencement and completion dates for public exhibition period	October 2018 – November 2018
Timeframe for the consideration of submissions	December 2018
Timeframe for the consideration of a proposal post exhibition	January 2019
Date of submission to the Department to finalise LEP	February 2019
Anticipated date RPA will make the plan (if delegated)	March 2019
Anticipated date RPA will forward to the Department for notification	March 2019

Appendices

Appendix 1: Draft Penrith LEP 2010 maps Appendix 2: Traffic and Parking Assessment

Appendix 3: Urban Design Report

Appendix 4: Preliminary Site Investigation – Contamination

Appendix 5: Economic Impact Assessment Appendix 6: Heritage Impact Statement

Appendix 7: Flooding and Overland Flow Report

Appendix 8: Council Report and Minutes

APPENDIX 1 Draft Penrith LEP 2010 Maps

APPENDIX 2 Traffic and Parking Assessment

APPENDIX 3 Urban Design Report

APPENDIX 4 Preliminary Site Investigation – Contamination

APPENDIX 5 Economic Impact Assessment

APPENDIX 6 Heritage Impact Statement

APPENDIX 7 Flooding and Overland Flow Report

APPENDIX 8 Council Report and Minutes